
PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 

 

The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on November 14, 

2018 at 7:00 pm in the Meeting Room of the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, Illinois. The LLD records all 

regular Board meetings. Any person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this meeting 

should contact the Lisle Library during regular business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a 

qualified interpreter require three working days advance notice. 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

November 14, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak 

3. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the October 10, 2018 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 10/31/18, Investment Activity Report, 10/31/18,  Current Assets 

Report, 10/31/18, Revenue Report, 10/31/18, and Expense Report, 10/31/18 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 11/14/18 

4. Director’s Report 

Assign Trustees for “Review of Bills Next Month” 

President Fisher and Secretary Bartelli reviewed the October billings in November. 

Trustee Flint and Trustee Swistak will review the November billings in December. 

5. Assistant Director’s Report 

6. Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel/Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

d. LLD Strategic Planning 

7. Unfinished Business 

8. New Business 

a. Approve Lisle Library District 2019-2022 Strategic Plan - Action Required 

Accept LLD 2019-2022 Strategic Plan as endorsed by LLD Strategic Planning Committee 

b. Adopt Ordinance 18-06: Levy - Action Required 

Annual ordinance levying taxes for corporate purposes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and 

ending June 30, 2019 

c. Approve Certification of Compliance with TITA - Action Required 

Annual certificate of compliance with the truth in taxation law 

d. Approve LLD Investment Strategy - Action Required 

Accept updated LLD Investment Strategy as prepared by investment firm, Ehlers Investment Partners 

[referenced in LLD Policy 720] 

e. Approve LLD Policy 710: Fund Balances - Action Required 

Accept modifications to LLD Policy 710: Fund Balances 

f. Approve LLD Policy 720: Investments - Action Required 

Accept modifications to LLD Policy 720: Investments 

g. Trustee conference report 

Report by Trustee who attended/presented at conference 

9. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Bartelli, Fisher, Flint, Hummel, Sullivan, Swistak, Wang 

10. Adjourn 

1 



 

1 
 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD MEETING 

October 10, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 

 
1. Roll call 

Present: 

Jay Fisher - President 

Thomas Hummel - Vice President 

Longry Wang - Treasurer 

Marjorie Bartelli - Secretary 

Richard Flint - Trustee 

Liz Sullivan - Trustee 

Emily Swistak - Trustee 

 

Also present: 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director 

Ginger Boskelly - Finance Director 

Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 

Will Savage - Director of Youth Services 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 

 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approve Minutes of the September 12, 2018 Public Hearing for Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance 

b. Approve Minutes of the September 12, 2018 Board Meeting 

c. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 09/30/18, Investment Activity Report, 09/30/18,  Current Assets 

Report, 09/30/18, Revenue Report, 09/30/18, and Expense Report, 09/30/18 

d. Authorize Payment of Bills, 10/10/18 

MOTION: Vice President Hummel moved to approve the Consent Agenda with an amendment to the 

Robbins & Schwartz invoice. 

 

Discussion: Staff provided clarification regarding the invoice and the consensus was to pull the 

Robbins & Schwartz invoice from the Consent Agenda. 

 

Vice President Hummel withdrew his motion. 

 

MOTION: Vice President Hummel moved to approve the Consent Agenda minus the Robbins & Schwartz 

invoice. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. Director’s Report 

Assign Trustees for “Review of Bills Next Month.” 

President Fisher and Trustee Flint reviewed the August billings in September. 

Vice President Hummel and Trustee Sullivan will review the September billings in October. 

2 



 

2 
 

 

Director Weinstein announced that she had a trends report she would like to present at the end of the 

meeting.  

 

MOTION: President Fisher moved to amend the agenda to move Director Weinstein’s trends 

presentation to after New Business. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

Director Weinstein stated that in September the Library celebrated its 10th annual I Love My Lisle Library 

Card program. She thanked the Circulation staff for their work on this program.  

 

In accordance with Policy 901, staff participated in sexual harassment training in August at their Staff 

Development Day. Trustees will also participate in sexual harassment training via a webinar.  

Director Weinstein and the Library’s department directors participated in a leadership workshop that 

focused on communication, productivity, professionalism, and morale.  

 

Trustees will be sent Trustee Facts File chapters and a webinar on serving patrons with disabilities, which is a 

requirement for the upcoming Per Capita grant application. Staff and Trustees are also required to be 

familiar with the Illinois Veterans History Project. Director Weinstein mentioned that she and the IT 

Manager met with IT vendors to prepare for upcoming technology plan work.  

 

The Lisle Woman’s Club, in partnership with Operation Stand Down, has a donation box in the LLD foyer 

through November 4th. The Library’s auditors were here in late September and the report to the Board will 

occur in December. Director Weinstein provided an update on the elevator. The Friends of the Lisle Library 

book and media sale starts on October 25th and runs through the 27th. 

 

Discussion: Treasurer Wang suggested starting a technology committee. President Fisher stated that 

he would discuss this idea with staff.  Secretary Bartelli asked questions about the project list as 

prepared by Assistant Director McQuillan. 

 

5. Assistant Director’s Report 

 

Assistant Director McQuillan provided an overview of the recent Star Wars Reads Day. The Event Planning 

Team worked on plans for Winter Read with the kick-off scheduled for December 7th. The Safety Team 

reviewed the Library’s tornado procedures. The Team will also review fire procedures and fire prevention in 

October. The Digital Outreach Team has coordinated with staff to make 10 short videos, available on the 

Library’s YouTube channel. The electrician repaired several emergency lights. Assistant Director McQuillan 

provided additional information concerning the elevator. 

 

Discussion: Trustee Sullivan asked Assistant Director McQuillan when the elevator project would be 

completed.  Assistant Director McQuillan mentioned that she has requested a timeline on the 

project. 

 

6. Committee Reports 

a. Finance - The next meeting is scheduled for October 22nd at 11 am. The Committee will review the 

investment and fund balance policies. 

b. Personnel/Policy - The Committee did not meet. No meeting planned. 

c. Physical Plant - The Committee did not meet. No meeting planned. 

3 



 

3 
 

d. LLD Strategic Planning - The next meeting is scheduled for October 19th at 6 pm. 

 

7. Unfinished Business - None 

 

8. New Business 

a. Approve Resolution R18-04: Resolution to Determine Estimate of Funds 

MOTION: Trustee Flint moved to approve Resolution R18-04: Resolution to Determine Estimate of 

Funds. Treasurer Wang seconded. 

 

Discussion: Director Weinstein provided an overview of the resolution. 

 

President Fisher called for a vote on the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

9. Director’s Presentation 

 

Director Weinstein presented information on the Library’s circulation and facility use statistics, national and 

local library trends, employment trends, and per capita expense comparisons among Illinois libraries. 

 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

 

Trustee Swistak thanked Director Weinstein for her thorough presentation. She also commended staff for 

Star Wars Reads Day. President Fisher thanked the Department Directors for the quarterly reports. 

 

11. Adjourn 

MOTION: Treasurer Wang moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Swistak seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 7:51 p.m. 

 

Recorded by 

 

____________________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the Board of Trustees on November 14, 2018. 

Approved by 

 

_____________________________________ 

Marjorie Bartelli, Secretary of the LLD Board of Trustees 

4 



5 



6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



25 



26 



27 



28 



29 



30 



31 



32 



33 



34 



35 



36 



37 



38 



39 



40 



41 



42 



43 



44 



45 



46 



47 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
8

O
ct

-1
8

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 1

7
/1

8
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 1
8

/1
9

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
6

,0
2

2
2

,2
2

8
8

,2
5

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
3

,6
5

3
-6

.5
2

%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

5
,8

8
1

3
,1

6
2

9
,0

4
3

3
9

,9
6

9
3

8
,4

3
6

-3
.8

4
%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

1
1

,9
0

3
5

,3
9

0
1

7
,2

9
3

7
5

,9
6

9
7

2
,0

8
9

-5
.1

1
%

YS
 N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t

1
,3

3
3

6
7

1
2

,0
0

4
9

,6
1

9
8

,8
0

4
-8

.4
7

%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
6

,8
9

8
3

,6
9

5
1

0
,5

9
3

4
3

,8
6

8
4

4
,3

0
8

1
.0

0
%

To
ta

l Y
S

8
,2

3
1

4
,3

6
6

1
2

,5
9

7
5

3
,4

8
7

5
3

,1
1

2
-0

.7
0

%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
2

,0
4

9
2

,0
4

9
5

,9
1

0
7

,8
7

8
3

3
.3

0
%

h
o

o
p

la
1

,8
5

5
1

,8
5

5
5

,5
8

9
7

,4
9

9
3

4
.1

7
%

R
B

 D
ig

it
al

2
7

4
2

7
4

5
2

3
6

7
2

2
8

.4
9

%

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

4
,1

7
8

0
4

,1
7

8
1

2
,0

2
2

1
6

,0
4

9
3

3
.5

0
%

Su
b

to
ta

l P
ri

n
t 

+ 
N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t/

D
ig

it
al

2
4

,3
1

2
9

,7
5

6
3

4
,0

6
8

1
4

1
,4

7
8

1
4

1
,2

5
0

-0
.1

6
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s
2

,6
1

8
2

,6
1

8
1

0
,9

6
5

1
0

,4
8

0
-4

.4
2

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
3

,2
0

1
3

,2
0

1
9

,5
5

0
1

2
,2

5
8

2
8

.3
6

%

W
ir

el
es

s 
U

se
1

,6
8

1
1

,6
8

1
7

,5
3

4
6

,5
4

0
-1

3
.1

9
%

Sc
an

n
X

 s
es

si
o

n
s/

jo
b

s
2

8
4

2
8

4
1

,1
8

5
1

,5
5

1
3

0
.8

9
%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
2

3
2

3
1

2
7

1
2

0
-5

.5
1

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
7

,8
0

7
0

7
,8

0
7

2
9

,3
6

1
3

0
,9

4
9

5
.4

1
%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

2
,1

1
9

9
,7

5
6

4
1

,8
7

5
1

7
0

,8
3

9
1

7
2

,1
9

9
0

.8
0

%

Li
te

ra
cy

 S
o

ft
w

ar
e 

U
sa

ge
 H

o
u

rs
9

9
3

8
0

3
8

6
1

.5
8

%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

O
ct

. 2
0

1
8

 T
o

ta
l

Y
T

D
 1

7
/1

8
Y

T
D

 1
8

/1
9

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

N
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ar

d
s 

A
d

d
ed

9
9

6
4

5
6

0
4

-6
.3

6
%

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

2
,8

8
5

1
2

,7
0

7
1

2
,2

9
3

-3
.2

6
%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

1
0

,9
1

6
1

1
,4

1
9

1
0

,9
1

6
-4

.4
0

%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

1
4

8
5

9
5

5
9

2
-0

.5
0

%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

3
5

3
1

,6
2

8
1

,6
0

9
-1

.1
7

%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

3
,2

6
1

1
2

,0
2

1
1

2
,1

3
7

0
.9

6
%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

2
,5

9
4

9
,1

8
8

9
,4

0
4

2
.3

5
%

48 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

0
1

8

Li
b

W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

7
/1

8
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

8
/1

9
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

7
3

9
6

2
2

1
3

0
2

7
7

5
5

8
1

0
1

.4
4

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
1

6
8

9
3

8
8

2
8

1
,2

2
5

4
,5

6
8

5
,0

2
3

9
.9

6
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

7
0

3
1

0
4

0
3

2
-2

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
3

0
4

1
7

1
3

7
7

9
-4

2
.3

4
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
2

0
2

1
8

1
2

-3
3

.3
3

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

8
9

0
8

9
4

1
7

4
8

4
1

6
.0

7
%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
1

1
4

3
-2

5
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
3

0
1

3
0

4
4

2
5

9
0

3
3

.4
8

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

1
3

6
3

9
6

2
5

1
4

3
3

3
9

6
0

5
7

8
.4

7
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
1

3
0

3
1

8
8

9
3

8
8

3
2

1
,4

6
1

5
,5

6
4

6
,1

7
6

1
1

.0
0

%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,1
0

7
1

,6
0

6
2

,7
7

4
6

,4
8

7
2

5
,7

6
8

2
6

,0
7

5
1

.1
9

%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
7

.5
0

2
5

.0
0

3
2

.5
0

5
6

3
.0

0
6

0
5

.5
0

7
.5

5
%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

4
7

2
1

3
4

8
5

9
2

2
.9

2
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
1

5
5

5
7

8
5

0
7

8
3

2
,5

7
5

3
,1

3
3

2
1

.6
7

%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
3

3
8

9
1

2
.5

0
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

7
0

1
7

0
2

9
7

4
6

4
5

6
.2

3
%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

7
7

2
1

6
5

6
6

8
2

1
.4

3
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3

2
5

5
7

8
5

0
9

5
3

2
,8

7
2

3
,5

9
7

2
5

.2
4

%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
1

0
0

3
9

6
3

7
6

-5
.0

5
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

1
9

0
7

9
-1

2
.2

2
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g
1

4
,8

3
0

6
1

,0
9

6
5

8
,2

3
8

-4
.6

8
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
2

4
5

2
5

.0
0

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

3
0

9
1

2
5

4
4

2
2

5
3

.6
0

%

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
1

,6
9

2
8

,6
4

0
6

,5
0

6
-2

4
.7

0
%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
7

4
5

6
7

7
7

4
5

1
0

.0
4

%

P
in

te
re

st
 A

ve
ra

ge
 D

ai
ly

 V
ie

w
er

s
3

6
4

6
5

4
9

3
5

4
2

.9
7

%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

5
0

8
1

,4
8

5
1

,5
6

2
5

.1
9

%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
1

5
,7

5
5

3
2

,3
6

1
4

8
,5

7
2

5
0

.0
9

%

49 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein | LLD Director 
Date: November 9, 2018 

1 
 

Director's Report 

November 2018 

 
Meetings 
 
 

Intergovernmental – Oct 11 
Fisher – Oct 16 
Dept Directors – Oct 18 
Strategic Planning – Oct 19 

Finance Committee – Oct 22 
Strategic Planning – Nov 1 
Paul’s Painting – Nov 5 
Fisher – Nov 9 

 
 
Libraries of Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) & Training 

 
I’m pleased to state that both the staff and Trustees have completed their sexual harassment 
training in accordance with Policy 901 which states that we will conduct this type training every 
year.  LIRA, the LLD’s insurance/risk agency, provided in-person training for staff and online training 
for Trustees. 
 
LLD Finance Director Boskelly, attended a LIRA meeting on November 7th.  There are 53 libraries 
within the LIRA pool.  LIRA issued the LLD a refund check in the amount of $2,086.80.  Our package 
for the property insurance is increasing by approximately 2% and our worker's compensation 
insurance is increasing by 8%.  LIRA received a grant from ILA which allowed the agency to 
purchase color-active ice alert signs for the library campus.  The signs have proven effective in 
preventing slips/falls.  The LLD received two signs via this grant.   

 
Trustees have been sent ILA Trustee Facts File chapters, a link to the Illinois Veterans History 
Project, and a RAILS-recommended video to fulfill requirements for our Per Capita Grant 
application.  The deadline for the application is January 15, 2019.   
 
 
Intergovernmental 
 
President Fisher and I attended the Intergovernmental Meeting on October 11th.  The following 
topics were discussed among participants: 
 

Park District: The District is working with Partners for Parks in updating the Community Park 
playground using Universal Design components.  There will be a Veteran’s Day event at the 
Veteran’s Memorial.  A grant was received for a boat launch in Community Park. 
 
Fire District: October is Fire Prevention Month.  The NARCAN programs continue to be 
effective.  There are ten new paramedics on staff.  The Silent Parade, honoring firefighters 
and civilians who lost their lives in fires, will proceed through the Meadows subdivision.   

50 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein | LLD Director 
Date: November 9, 2018 

2 
 

 
Chamber of Commerce: The downtown businesses trick-or-treat event happens on October 
27th.  The Turkey Trot will commence at Community Park.  Lisle Uncorked is scheduled for 
November 2nd. 
 
District 202:  The new elementary school is on schedule and on budget.  The Board is 
evaluating all options for Schiesher and obtaining appraisals.  The Board is conducting 
interviews for a Trustee appointment.  The Board will have four seats up for election in 
April.  In 2018, there was a 100% graduation rate at the high school.   
 
Convention/Visitor’s Bureau:  The LCVB is hosting a food drive from October through 
December.  The Santa Parade participant forms are on the LCVB website. 
 
Village:  There are occupancy agreements issued for Marq on Main apartments.  A café and 
workout facility are scheduled to open soon.  Fall branch pick-up has been completed.  Leaf 
collection begins.  Code modernization efforts are underway.  Board meeting format has 
changed.  The Downtown Master Plan will advance to the Board from Committee.  A tractor 
company is moving to Lisle.  Storm-water study conducted by Army Corps of Engineers 
looks to be completed by summer of 2019 but also requires congressional approval.  The 
Village has a new HR Manager.  A Village levy proposal is forthcoming. 

 
Technology 
 
In efforts to upgrade our technology and ensure component uniformity, IT Manager Hayes has 
been working on a number of projects in cooperation with OSG, our outsourced IT firm. Below are 
a few of the projects that have been completed thus far: 
 

• Updating eCommerce software (Envisionware server), making a copy of data, moving to 

new server, updating the clients (POS) at the self-check kiosks, and updating the web 

software.  

• Hard-drive backup rotation for secondary data storage.  

• Updated browsers on the public computers. 

• Reoriented YS computers to provide better configuration to scanner and printer. 

• West-end security cameras installed. 

• Penetration Testing for Credit Card Processing; Passed. 

• Windows Updates to Servers. 

• Updated software on all instruction cart laptops. 

Switch Installations to update infrastructure of network has been scheduled for mid-November. 
 
 

51 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein | LLD Director 
Date: November 9, 2018 

3 
 

 
College Tours 
 
The Library regularly facilitates patron tours of the facility via the Navigator Program conducted by 
the Circulation Department.  Occasionally, college instructors request special tours for their 
students and the Library enthusiastically obliges.  In October, Technical Services Director, Laura 
Murff, provided a tour for 14 students of the College of DuPage Acquisitions class.  The scope of 
the tour included Circulation, Adult, and Youth Services, as well as the Technical Services work 
area.  Laura discussed skill sets, library vendors, and the workflow involved in managing the 
acquisitions of materials for a public library. 
 
In November, Librarian, Jean Demas, provided a facility tour for 13 North Central College students. 
The students were enrolled in a Culturally Responsive Practices class.  The tour focused on LLD 
Literacy materials and services.  The instructor heard about LLD Literacy services via District 203 
STEM summer camp flyers. She specified that she wants all of her students to be aware of 
culturally responsive public services that are local.   
 

 
Draft Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06 
 
I have prepared Draft Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06 for Board review and approval.  I thank Assistant 
Director McQuillan, Finance Director Boskelly, and the other administrative staff for their assistance 
and feedback while accomplishing this important task.  Please see attached overview letter, levy 
draft, and fund analysis document for complete details.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Tatiana Weinstein 
 
 
 
 

52 



53 



54 



55 



56 



57 



58 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ENRICH | EDUCATE | EMPOWER 

 
 
 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT (LLD) 
2019-2022  

STRATEGIC PLAN  

59 



 

 

 

PRESIDENT’S LETTER 
 

Residents, Friends, and Staff of the Lisle Library District, 

The Board of Trustees of the Lisle Library District is very pleased to present the Lisle 
Library District Strategic Plan for 2019-2022. This Strategic Plan exemplifies the 
District’s dedication to continuous improvement. 

The Board and Staff are committed to the Library’s Vision and Mission. The objectives 
outlined in the Strategic Plan will guide the Library’s development in the next few years 
and further the Mission of the Library to enhance “the cultural, social, and life-long 
educational development of the community.” 

This Strategic Plan will prepare the Lisle Library District for the ever present changes in 
technology and services that patrons expect while maintaining the first-class customer 
service that for which the Lisle Library District is known for. 

Thank you to the Board of Trustees, the Strategic Planning Committee, Director 
Weinstein, and the residents for all your input during the recent Community 
Engagement Project. It took everyone’s input to make this strategic planning process a 
success. 

 

 

Jay Fisher 

President, LLD Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60 



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

A strategic plan helps an organization plan its future.  In January of 
2018, the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board President appointed the 
LLD Strategic Planning Committee (SPC).  The Committee included all 
LLD Trustees and key staff.   
The SPC has produced a plan that is focused on access, diversity, 
improved Library experiences, and fiscal responsibility.  The SPC 
envisions this Plan to advance the LLD forward for the next three 
years. The SPC utilized community input, key research, and 
innovative ideas to direct development.   
The 2019-2022 LLD Strategic Plan was adopted by the Board of 
Trustees on November 14, 2018. 

 
LLD Vision | Mission 
 
Vision: Our vision is to enrich, educate, and empower the residents of the Lisle Library District. 
 
Mission: The Lisle Library District is committed to enhancing the cultural, social, and lifelong                  
educational development of the community. 
 
SPC Members 
 
Jay Fisher | President 
Thomas Hummel | Vice President 
Longry Wang | Treasurer 
Marjorie Bartelli | Secretary 
Richard Flint | Trustee 
Liz Sullivan | Trustee 
Emily Swistak | Trustee 

Tatiana Weinstein | Director (ex-officio) 
Beth McQuillan | Assistant Director (ex-officio) 
Will Savage | Youth Services Director 
Elizabeth Hopkins | Adult Services Director 

 
SPC Process 
 
2011-2016 
The last LLD Strategic Plan was a five year plan that spanned 2011-2016. During this time, the LLD 
acknowledged that the Library’s facility had some deficiencies and needs, so a Facilities Steering 
Committee (FSC) was formed in 2012 to address upcoming facility projects (retired in 2016).  The 
FSC used the 2011-2016 LLD Strategic Plan as its foundational document to guide discussions. 
Though technically expired, the LLD continued to recognize the Plan’s important concepts and goals 
until a new plan was in place.   
 
2017 
In 2017, the LLD experienced a membership shift on the Board as well as a leadership shift with a 
new Director.  These changes fostered discussions regarding a new strategic plan for the Library.   
Also in 2017, the LLD completed a comprehensive Community Engagement Project where the LLD 
hired a consultant to facilitate focus groups, community forums, and a District-wide community 
survey concentrating on service, collection, and facility needs. There were four focus groups with a 
total of 29 stakeholders, two community forums with a total of 70 participants, and 737 completed 
surveys.  The results of this project are available on the LLD’s website: lislelibrary.org.   
 

61 



 

 

Map provided by GIS Consultant via the Village of Lisle 

2018 
February 21, 2018 marked the first of nine SPC meetings. The first meeting served as an 
introduction and review of the 2011-2016 LLD Strategic Plan, 2012-2016 LLD Facilities Steering 
Committee Report, 2016 Strategic Facility Plan (Engberg Anderson), and 2017 Community 
Engagement Project (Millennia Consulting).   
 
Succeeding SPC meetings included reviewing other institutional plans, discussing areas of focus for 
a future plan, and sharing ideas about potential facility improvements and/or areas in the building 
or around the campus that need attention.   
The SPC eventually narrowed the main areas of focus to four: 
 

Advocacy/Outreach 
Awareness 

Facility 
Organizational 

Culture 
Technology & 

Innovation 
 -Additional information follows Executive Summary. Focus areas are shown in alphabetical order and are all of equal importance.  
 

While the SPC agreed upon four main areas for the three-year Plan, the Committee has also 
identified additional attributes that inspire and guide this Plan:  
  

 

The above attributes serve as drivers and/or motivators and shall contribute to the discussions, 
decisions, and implementation of all focus area initiatives and projects.    
 
Implementation 
Strategically addressing the objectives outlined in this Plan will be a continual effort between the 
Library’s Administration and the Board of Trustees.  During the course of the 2019 -2022 LLD 
Strategic Plan, the Director will apprise the Board of Plan initiatives and coordinate committee-
related projects with the appropriate bodies.     
 

Service Area 
 
The Lisle Library District includes most of Lisle, 
including unincorporated areas of Lisle and Naperville.   
  

 2010 District population = 28,504 
 2017 Village of Lisle Special Census, District 

population = 29,535 
 
All District residents are eligible for a Library card 
regardless of age.  The Library facility and campus are 
open to the public during operating hours. Additional 
information about Library cards and District boundaries 

can be found at lislelibrary.org. 
 

RED OUTLINE = Lisle Library District boundary 
BLUE SHAPE = Village of Lisle  
WHITE SHAPES = Unincorporated areas 
 

 

 Diversity 
 Data Driven Decisions 
 Partnerships 

 Efficiencies 
 Training 
 Grant Writing 

 Alternative Funding 
 Lifelong Learning 
 Fiscal Responsibility 

LLD 

62 



 

 

FOCUS AREAS 
 
 

ADVOCACY | OUTREACH | AWARENESS 
 
Objective: 
 
Proactively promote LLD services, resources, and programs via community engagement, 
intergovernmental efforts, and communications media. 
 
Approach: 
 
1. Develop marketing plan for services, resources, and programs.  

a. Establish demographic profiles 
b. Evaluate territory; District map and online platforms 
c. Determine specific promotion activities and effective promotional tools 
d. Effectively utilize LLD brand  

 
2. Engage intergovernmental entities to partner in community awareness campaigns. 
 
3. Explore and enhance social/digital and mass media Library advocacy opportunities. 
 
4. Continue and improve staff outreach efforts to underserved and unexplored District areas.  
 
5. Optimize and increase signage on campus and in community. 
 
6. Provide effective training regarding new advocacy initiatives for staff and Trustees.  
 
 
 
FACILITY 
 
Objective: 
 
Provide a welcoming facility and campus that meets community needs, encourages utilization, and 
fosters an enriching environment. 
 
Approach: 
 
1. Update and enhance facility structure and exterior areas as identified by Strategic Planning  

Committee (SPC) to improve user experience (see Appendix A). 
 

2. Utilize Universal Design (UD) concepts in projected LLD facility projects.  
 
3. Commission professional assistance, when appropriate, to achieve SPC Facility objective. 
 
4. Refer capital projects to LLD Physical Plant Committee to review expert advice and 

recommend steps to achieve SPC Facility objective. 
 
 
 

63 



 

 
-TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION continued… 

ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE 
 
Objective: 
 
Develop and maintain a strong, diverse, and professional organizational culture that reflects  
the vision, mission and values of the LLD.  
 
Approach: 
 
1. Review and affirm LLD vision, mission and values. 
 
2. Review/update/draft LLD policies at least quarterly in accordance with ILA standard 

guidelines; develop ethics policy for Trustees/Staff. 
 
3. Foster professional environment. 

a. Provide training, at least annually, that applies to LLD ethics policy 
b. Advance cross training opportunities to improve patron services 

 
4. Utilize authenticated research, analysis, and professional standards when developing 

policies, procedures, presentations, and projects. 
 
5. Diversify alternative funding.  

a. Pursue grant opportunities as available 
b. Regenerate LLD Foundation relationship  
c. Continue cultivating Friends (FLPLD) relationship 

 
6. Increase community engagement via organized collaboration with local non-profits, units of 

government, and businesses. 
 
7. Maintain qualified professional staff. 
 
 
TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION 
 
Objective: 
 
Implement and administer effective, efficient, and innovative technology throughout the facility  
and on campus.    
 
Approach: 
 
1. Develop IT (Information Technology) Plan that includes: 

a. Technology replacement schedule 
b. Disaster recovery program 
c. Updated IT infrastructure 
d. Enhanced network and facility security 

 
2. Adopt uniform IT hardware strategy; purchase and contract in accordance. 
 
3. Reconfigure LLD server room; providing ease of access to servers, switches, appliances, and 

cabling.  

64 



 

 

 
4. Optimize RFID components within facility.  

a. Explore innovations to enhance user experience via automated check-out  
b. Improve inventory operations  
c. Provide additional security 
d. Examine ways to streamline tasks through automation 

 
5. Improve access to technology resources. 

a. Enhance Library app; providing access to LLD databases, digital content  
platforms, and program registration 

b. Expand technology education opportunities via public programming 
c. Provide appropriate space for technology education opportunities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A   
 
FACILITY 
 
1. Provide adequate restroom facilities on all floors, including inclusive/family 

bathroom options.  
2. Equip facility with suitable group and individual study space. 
3. Create a hospitable foyer experience.  
4. Provide space for media, maker, and STEAM activities. 
5. Reconfigure and update HVAC components in building. 
6. Reconfigure and update IT infrastructure. 
7. Develop circulation processes that eliminate redundancies and enhance user experience. 
8. Provide adequate shelving/space to feature new and innovative formats while maintaining 

appropriate space for traditional formats. 
9. Provide safe, vehicular drop-off. 
10. Equip Youth Services Department with adequate programming space and clear sightlines. 
11. Furnish electrical access to users in effective and appropriate locations. 
12. Optimize RFID components within facility. 
13. Provide adequate reading, study, meeting, collection, and programming space for high-school 

age patrons. 
14. Offer patrons a food/drink vending option. 
15. Effectively accentuate entrance to facility; highlight facility presence in community. 
16. Monitor and maintain storm-water drainage system on property. 
17. Offer patrons a selection of safe, welcoming, and inspirational outside areas to read,  

meet, and/or unwind. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Contact 
 Board and Staff contact information on the LLD website: lislelibrary.org > about us > contact us 
 Email the Board + Director: directboard@lislelibrary.org 
 Email the Board: lldboard@lislelibrary.org 
 Email the Director: tatiana@lislelibrary.org  

 
Lisle Library District 
777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532 
630-971-1675 
lislelibrary.org 

66 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein 
Date: November 9, 2018 

 
LLD Board of Trustees: 
 
I am proposing Draft Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06 (attached). Revenue generated via this levy will be 
received in 2019. Illinois law mandates that the LLD levy cannot exceed the amounts appropriated in this 
year’s Budget and Appropriation (B&A) Ordinance (approved on September 12, 2018). Each line item 
within the draft shows the B&A amount beside the amount we intend to levy.   
 
Draft Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06 is $212,955.00 less than last year’s requested amount; a 4.93% decrease. 
   
Balancing appropriate Library services, resources, and programs with a fiscally responsible tax levy each 
year is my priority.  If you consider last year’s decrease and add it to this year’s, you see a reduction of 
over $700,000.00.   
 
January 2019 marks my second year as Director and it has been very satisfying to be able to provide our 
residents a tax reduction for the last two years. I attribute this to the act of applying a measured approach 
to planning and budgeting.  Additionally, staff practice smart negotiating, responsible spending, and 
implement operational efficiencies when and where appropriate to achieve our economic goals.   
 
Below are the last four years of LLD tax levy history and this year’s request: 

 Tax Levy History  
Year Requested Received Difference 
2018 4,102,055.00   

2017 4,315,010.00 4,360,025.92 45,015.92 

2016 4,829,600.00 4,880,380.18 50,780.18 
2015 4,804,263.97 4,852,748.93 48,484.96 
2014 4,771,114.00 4,756,697.01 -14,416.99 

 
While Draft Tax Ordinance 18-06 demonstrates a significant decrease in requested funding, the LLD has a 
healthy Corporate Fund.  My objective is to maintain 6-8 months of operating expenses within this general 
fund.  In preparing the upcoming FY2019/2020 budget, the LLD will depend on the tax levy as well as our 
Corporate Fund for general operating expenses.   
 
Draft Tax Ordinance 18-06 documents the intent to cease levying for the .02 Building and Maintenance 
Fund.  There are footnotes that affirm this decision.  The LLD attorney has reviewed this draft and 
provided language for the footnotes throughout.        
 
The LLD uses what is called the “Miller Analysis” (attached) to maintain appropriate balances within LLD 
Special Funds. Draft Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06 reflects appropriate levy amount requests.  
 
As a taxing body, the LLD recognizes the importance of quality services, staff, resources, and programming 
for our residents and providing comprehensive value is my goal as Director. 
 
I recommend the LLD Board of Trustees adopt Tax Levy Ordinance 18-06.  
   
 
Tatiana Weinstein 
LLD Director 
 

67 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE 18-06 
TAX LEVY ORDINANCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2018, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2019, FOR THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT, OF DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.1  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1: Ordinance 18-05 (Budget and Appropriation Ordinance) is incorporated by 
reference. 

 
Section 2: A tax for the following sums of money, or as much as thereof as may be authorized 
by law, to defray all expenses and liabilities of the Lisle Library District be and the same is 
hereby levied for the purposes specified against all taxable property in the Lisle Library District 
for the fiscal year commencing on the 1st day of July, 2018, and ending on the 30th day of 
June, 2019. 

 
  

 

 
1. CORPORATE FUND 

 

AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED 

 

AMOUNT 

LEVIED 

EXPENDITURES    

A. EMPLOYEE COSTS   

 Salaries $2,230,000.00 $2,210,000.00 

 Health Insurance $350,000.00 $350,000.00 

 Compysch Asst Plan $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

 Unemployment Compensation $4,000.00 $4,000.00 

 Tuition Reimbursement $2,000.00 $0.00 

  $2,587,000.00 $2,565,000.00 

    

B. BUILDING COSTS   

 Internet Service Provider $5,400.00 $5,400.00 

 Inet $1,810.00 $1,810.00 

 Utilities $75,000.00 $70,000.00 

 Maintenance Contracts $79,000.00 $79,000.00 

 Maintenance/Repairs $101,970.00 $101,970.00 

 Rubbish Removal $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

  $265,680.00 $260,680.00 

                                                           
1 Note to taxpayers:   

 This Tax Levy Ordinance relates to Library District taxes to be reflected on DuPage County real estate tax bills to be 
sent in May, 2019. 

 The real estate tax revenue generated by this Tax Levy Ordinance will be received by the Library District in 2019.   

 Reference in this Tax Levy Ordinance to the Library District’s 2018-2019 fiscal year simply complies with state laws 
applicable to Library Districts. 

68 



2 

 

 

 
 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

C. OPERATING EXPENSES   

 Postage $12,500.00 $12,500.00 

 Printing/Spec Services $21,000.00 $21,000.00 

 Office Supplies $30,000.00 $30,000.00 

 Circ Material Supplies $10,000.00 $10,000.00 

 Processing Supplies $28,000.00 $28,000.00 

 Publishing $1,500.00 $1,500.00 

 Safety Deposit Box Rental $150.00 $150.00 

 Check Printing/Bank charges $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

 Local Travel $525.00 $525.00 

  $106,175.00 $106,175.00 

    

D. INSURANCE   

 Fidelity Bond $2,450.00 $2,450.00 

 Property and Liability Coverage $25,000.00 $25,000.00 

 Notary Bond $0.00 $0.00 

 Workers Comp Insurance $6,700.00 $6,700.00 

  $34,150.00 $34,150.00 

    

E. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES   

 Legal Services $20,000.00 $20,000.00 

 Collection Agency $700.00 $700.00 

 Other Contractual Services $74,800.00 $74,800.00 

 Investment Agency Consultants $7,000.00 $7,000.00 

 Audit Fee $9,000.00 $9,000.00 

 Payroll Service $7,700.00 $7,700.00 

 Accounting Maintenance/Upgrades $8,950.00 $8,950.00 

  $128,150.00 $128,150.00 

    

F. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT   

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences, Staff $22,100.00 $15,000.00 

 Memorial/Tribute/Recognition $2,000.00 $0.00 

 In-Service $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

 Training/Continuing-Ed, Staff $2,000.00 $1,500.00 

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences/Training, Trustees $3,600.00 $3,600.00 

  $32,700.00 $23,100.00 

    

G. EQUIPMENT   

 Polaris $52,500.00 $52,500.00 

 Major Equipment $66,000.00 $66,000.00 

 Minor Equipment $4,000.00 $3,500.00 

 Rental-Postage Meter $800.00 $800.00 

 Equipment Maintenance/Repair $21,000.00 $21,000.00 

  $144,300.00 $143,800.00 

69 



3 

 

 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

H. LIBRARY MATERIALS   

 Literacy $9,000.00 $9,000.00 

 Books $235,000.00 $225,000.00 

 Databases $150,000.00 $149,200.00 

 AV $122,000.00 $120,000.00 

 Periodicals $46,800.00 $46,800.00 

 Document Delivery $22,000.00 $22,000.00 

  $584,800.00 $572,000.00 

    

I. PROGRAMS   

 Programs/Community Engagement $37,000.00 $37,000.00 

 Readers Services $7,000.00 $7,000.00 

  $44,000.00 $44,000.00 

    

J. RESTRICTED EXPENSES   

 Gifts (if gifts are received) $20,000.00 $0.00 

 Per Capita Grant (per State standards if received) $36,000.00 $0.00 

 Transfer to Special Reserve Fund $300,000.00 $0.00 

 Transfer to IMRF (supplemental funding) $75,000.00 $50,000.00 

  $431,000.00 $50,000.00 

    

K. CONTINGENCY $25,000.00 $0.00 

    

Corporate Fund appropriation subtotal 

Levied for the foregoing  expenses from the General Public Library Tax 

$4,382,955.00  

 $3,927,055.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $455,900.00  

    

2. .02 EQUIPMENT, MAINTENANCE, & REPAIRS FUND 

Special Tax of .02% for the cost of equipment, maintenance, repairs, and 

alterations of library buildings and equipment.2   

$220,000.00  

 $0.00 

  

  

    

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $220,000.00  

    

3.  IMRF (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) 

Levied for the foregoing expense of Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund from a 

Special Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

$184,500.00  

 $50,000.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $134,500.00  
 

                                                           
2 The Library Board has determined to not levy this Special Tax in LLD Ordinance 18-06. Expenses for equipment, maintenance,       

and repairs will be paid from the Library District’s Corporate Fund levy and/or from reserves in the Library District’s .02 Equipment, 
Maintenance, & Repairs Fund. 

70 



4 

 

 

 
 

Section 3:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage.   
 
ADOPTED and approved November 14, 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
 
AYES: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jay Fisher 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District  

Passed and filed in my office November 14, 2018. 
 
_____________________________ 
Marjorie Bartelli 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District      
       

 AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

  

4. FICA FUND  (Federal Insurance Contributions Act) 
Levied for the foregoing expense of Social Security from Special 

Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

$172,990.00    

 $125,000.00   

    

      

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $47,990.00    

      

5.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND $280,000.00    

   $0.00   

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $280,000.00    

      

      

SUMMARY:      

      

Total Appropriation $5,240,445.00    

      

Appropriated from other sources  $1,138,390.00    

      

Levied as the General Public Library Tax  $3,927,055.00   

      

Levied as Special Fund Taxes  $175,000.00   

      

TOTAL LEVY  $4,102,055.00   

71 



 

 

 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY 
 
 

I, Marjorie Bartelli, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified Secretary of the 
 
 Board of Trustees of the Lisle Library District of DuPage County, Illinois, and, as such 
 
 I am the custodian and keeper of the records and files of said Library District. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of that certain Levy 
 
 Ordinance levying and assessing taxes for said Lisle Library District for the fiscal year 
 
 beginning July 1, 2018, which was adopted by said Board of Trustees at a meeting of 
 
 said Board of Trustees held on November 14, 2018. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached Ordinance has not been amended, altered, 
 
 changed or repealed and is still in full force and effect. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature and the 
 
 corporate seal of said Lisle Library District, DuPage County, Illinois, at Lisle, Illinois this 
 
 14th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________ 

Marjorie Bartelli 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 

72 



LLD Special Purpose Fund Analysis 

 

"Miller" Analysis - Special Purpose Funds

Expenses Building/Maintenance .02 IMRF FICA

FY15/16 119,893.00                                   213,910.00       158,927.00          

FY16/17 142,167.00                                   201,290.00       161,630.00          

FY17/18 UNAUDITED 137,676.00 176,734.00 151,938.00

399,736.00 591,934.00 472,495.00

Average 133,245.33                                   197,311.33       157,498.33          

Twice Average 266,490.66                                  394,622.66      314,996.66         

BALANCES UNAUDITED (6/30/18) $64,867.00 $342,324.00 $165,673.00

Special purpose fund balances should not accumulate more than twice the average 3 year expenditures

73 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW 

 
 

I, Jay Fisher, certify that I am the duly presiding officer of the Lisle Library District, DuPage 

County, Illinois, and I certify that the attached ORDINANCE 18-06 (tax levy) was adopted in compliance 

with the Truth in Taxation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-55 et seq., i.e.: 

__X__ The Library District levied an amount less than 105% of the final aggregate   
  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year. 

 
_____ The Library District levied an amount greater than 105% of the final aggregate   

  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year and   
  a public hearing was held following publication of notice of the public hearing. 
 

This Certificate applies to the 2018 levy. 

 
_________________________________  

       Jay Fisher 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
 
Date signed: November 14, 2018 

 

74 



 

 
http://www.ehlersinvest.com/ 

 

 

 

 

To: Lisle Library District Board of Trustees 

CC:   Ginger Boskelly  

From: Ken Herdeman 

Date: October 22, 2018 

Re: Investment Strategy  

An investment strategy formulated for the Lisle Library District must adhere to the 

principal of preservation of capital (Safety), insure funds are readily available to meet 

daily and intermediate operational cash requirements (Liquidity) and maximize return 

on investments after consideration of safety and liquidity requirements. Furthermore, the 

investment strategy must consider near and intermediate term implications. 

 

Near Term – The strategy for the near term should focus on insuring sufficient funds 

are available to meet daily requirements while maintaining minimum cash balances that 

earn low rates of return.  This strategy would employ a well-defined cash forecast that 

provides reasonable expectations of cash requirements for a minimum of 12 months and 

a portion of the investment portfolio, approximately 10%, in investments with a liquid 

market and an average weighted maturity of no more than 1 year.  

 

At 9/30/18 the District had approximately $6.6 million in immediately available cash 

and almost $4.2 million in investments. Of this over 28% (approximately $1,215,000) 

matures in less than 12 months. In the short-term the District should have approximately 

$1,200,000 in cash and cash equivalents, or approximately 3 months expenses. (As of 

9/30/18 the District had nearly 5.5X more in liquid assets than what would be needed.)  

Of this total $700,000 should be in demand and deposit accounts or other immediately 

accessible money market type account(s).  The remaining $500,000 should be invested 

in “longer-term” marketable securities, longer-term defined as maturities not longer than 

1 year. In order to maximize returns on cash required to meet near term requirements the 

District could place funds in;  

       

o Money market accounts of financial institutions whose deposits are 

insured by the FDIC and allows same day or next day withdrawals.  

o Money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company 

Act of 1940, provided that the portfolio of any such money market 

mutual fund is limited to short-term obligations of the U.S. Treasury or 

U.S. Agencies and allows same day or next withdrawals. 

o A Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool created under Section 17 of the 

State Treasurers Act and allows same day or next day withdrawals; such 

as the Illinois Fund or the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET). 

 

 

75 



 

 
http://www.ehlersinvest.com/ 

 

 

 

 

 

Intermediate Term – Remaining funds should be invested for a term between 2 and 5 

years that emphasizes preservation of capital, provides for sufficient liquidity to meet 

intermediate term cash requirements (such as projected/proposed capital improvements) 

and seeks to maximize returns by taking advantage of a positive sloping yield curve. 

The District’s investment strategy for the intermediate term should be specifically 

defined as; 

 

 Safety – The District’s investment policy generally defines “Authorized and 

Suitable” investments as anything permissible under Section 30, Act 235 of the 

Illinois Public Funds Investment Act. Although the act address credit/default risk 

(the risk of loss due to the failure of the issuer not paying interest or principal 

when due) it does not specifically address market/interest rate risk (the risk that 

the market value of securities in the portfolio will change due to changes in 

market interest rates).  This definition for the District’s investment strategy 

should be further restricted to only; 

 

o U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds with a maturity date not to exceed 5 

years from the date of purchase. 

o U.S. Agency bills, notes and bonds with a maturity date not to exceed 5 

years from the date of purchase. 

o Interest bearing bonds of any city, township, village, county or 

incorporated town if the bonds are rated in the 4 highest general 

classifications established by a rating service of nationally recognized 

expertise in rating bonds of this type, and with a maturity date not to 

exceed 3 years from the date of purchase.   

o Certificates of Deposit of any financial institution whose deposits are 

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in amounts 

not to exceed insured limits set by the FDIC with maturities not exceed  

5 years from the date of purchase.  

o The District’s investments may consist of 100% U.S. Treasury bills, 

notes and bonds or U.S. Agency bills, notes and bonds.  Not more than 

60% of the Districts investments may consist of Certificates of Deposit 

as defined and not more than 25% of the District’s investments may 

consist of interest bearing bonds of any city, township, village, county or 

incorporated town as defined.  

 

 Liquidity – The District, in completing a well-defined cash flow forecast for the 

near-term, has identified funds available for investment over an intermediate 

term.  For liquidity requirements in the intermediate term the District’s 

investment portfolio shall not exceed an average weighted maturity (or duration) 

of 3 years. (At 9/30/18 the District’s average weighted maturity is 1.8 years). 

 

 

 

 

 

76 



 

 
http://www.ehlersinvest.com/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 Return/Yield – After considering safety of investments and in completing a 

cash forecast to identify funds required in the near term and funds available for 

investment in the intermediate term (liquidity), the District shall attempt to 

maximize investment returns by lengthening maturities within the limits 

prescribed above and thus take advantage of long-term interest rates. 

 

Long term investment strategy – The long-term investment strategy of the District 

should focus on providing excellent service to patrons and maintaining physical plant, 

not investment of cash assets.  Investment of cash assets over the near and intermediate 

term as defined here will translate into the long-term investment strategy for the District. 
 

Additionally, Section 104 – Delegation of Authority, of the District’s Investment Policy 

states that “The management and administrative duties (for the investment program) are 

delegated to the Library Director and Finance Director.”  In order to improve the 

efficiency of the investment program and take advantage of investment opportunities 

when they become available, the Board and Board Treasurer should authorize and allow 

the Library Director or Finance Director, without prior approval from the Board or 

Board Treasurer, to initiate/approve all investment transactions that are permissible 

investments as defined in the investment policy and investment strategy (other than U.S. 

Treasury, U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise, and U.S Agency Securities and 

Certificates of Deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation) and that 

do not exceed $250,000.      

 

As your Investment Adviser, Ehlers Investment Partners will continually asses your exposure as 

an investor in relation to interest rate and credit risk by analyzing your current investments, cash 

flows and your exposure to interest rate volatility.  By properly assessing these risks Ehlers 

Investment Partners can advise you on specific products and strategies that will fit the goals of 

the District. 

77 



 

 

 
 

POLICY 710 
FUND BALANCES 

 
1. Purpose and Scope 
 
The Lisle Library District (LLD) is committed to the responsible accounting for all public funds. 
This Fund Balance Policy establishes a minimum levels and target range at which the projected 
year-end fund balances should be maintained.   
The purpose of this policy is to provide financial stability, cash flow for operations, and the 
maintenance of adequate fund balances to mitigate future risks and assure that the District will 
be able to respond to emergencies, revenue shortfalls, and unexpected expenditures with fiscal 
strength.   
This Fund Balance Policy 710 establishes a minimum levels and target range at which the 
projected year-end fund balances should be maintained.   
This policy shall be reviewed annually. 
 
It is the policy of the Lisle Library District (LLD) to support Fiscal sustainability as its first is a 
priority, while also as is building funds saving for future needs.  Adequate fund balance levels 
are crucial to long-term financial planning. 
This policy shall be reviewed annually. 
 
2. A. Definitions Classifications  
Fund balances are composed of three primary categories: non-spendable, restricted and 
unrestricted.  Some funds include both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned and 
unassigned) funds.  The District assumes that the order of spending fund balances is as follows: 
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. 

1. Restricted fund balances: net assets subject to external enforceable legal 
restrictions. 

2. Committed fund balances: net assets with self-imposed constraints or 
limitations approved by Ordinance or action of the Board of Trustees.  Formal 
action to commit fund balance must occur before the end of a fiscal year.  
Modification or removal of the constraint/limitation must follow the same form 
of action that was used to commit the fund balance 

3. Assigned fund balances: net assets with self-imposed constraints based on the 
intent to use the fund balance for a specific purpose.  Intent may be denoted by 
the Board of Trustees; authority to denote intent for assigned fund balances may 
be delegated to the LLD Director 

4. Unassigned fund balances: available expendable financial resources that are not 
restricted, committed or assigned and that are not the object of a tentative 
management plan. 

 

78 



 

 

The following fund balance classifications, as established by GASB (Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board), depict the relative strength of spending constraints, from the most 
restrictive to the least:, placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 
 

a. Non-spendable fund balance: amounts that are not in a spendable form or are 
required to be maintained intact.1  

 
b. Restricted fund balance: amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 

through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.2 
 

c. Committed fund balance: amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government 
itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; amounts cannot be used for 
any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to 
remove or change the constraint. Formal action to commit fund balance must occur 
before the end of a fiscal year. 3  

 
d. Assigned fund balance: amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose.4 

 
e. Unassigned fund balance: amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts 

are reported only in the General/Corporate Fund.5 
 
 

3. B. Fund Balance Levels 
In establishing the Lisle Library District’s policy for unrestricted fund balance/net asset 
levels, the Board considered the following factors: 

1. The predictability of the District’s revenues, including the likelihood of 
unpredictable fluctuations in these revenues, and the volatility of its operating 
expenditures. 

2. The District’s potential exposure to significant one-time outlays including 
disasters, immediate capital needs, changes in tax base, and other possible 
events 

3. The potential drain upon Corporate Fund resources from other funds, as well as 
the availability of resources in other funds 

4. Liquidity of financial resources. 
5. Commitments and assignments; the Board may wish to maintain higher levels of 

unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of the Corporate Fund 
balance already committed or assigned by the District for a specific purpose 

 
 
 

                                                 
1 Non-Spendable examples: prepaid expenses, land/property, Working Cash Fund   
2 Restricted examples: .02 Building & Maintenance, IMRF, & FICA Funds   
3 Committed example: the LLD does not currently have funds categorized as “Committed” 
4 Assigned example: Special Reserve Fund 
5 Unassigned example: General/Corporate Fund 

79 



 

 

 
4. C. Corporate Fund 

The Corporate Fund is the general operating fund of the Lisle Library District Library.  It 
is used to account for all Expenditures from this fund include, but are not limited to, 
administrative personnel (salaries/benefits), maintenance, utilities, materials  
(ex: books/DVDs/online resources), insurance, equipment, and programs. other library 
expenditures and all financial resources except for those expenditures which are 
specifically allocated to and accounted for in a separately constituted fund.   
 
Unrestricted fund balance targets The Corporate Fund should represent no less than six 
(6) months of operating expenditures and may be maintained at a level representing up 
to twelve (12) months of operating expenditures.  Balances above [6 months,] at fiscal 
year-end, may be transferred to the Special Reserve Fund on an annual basis by a via 
Board resolution ordinance. 
 
 

5. D. Other Revenue Funds 
Separate revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.   
Such funds include IMRF, FICA, Building Maintenance, Working Cash, Special Reserve, 
and any other fund with the Board might have cause to establish at a future date.   
 
Other revenue sources legally restricted for special purposes include, IMRF (Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund), FICA (Federal Insurance Contributions Act), .02 Building 
and Maintenance (levy ceased in 2018), Working Cash, and Special Reserve.  
 
With the exception of the Working Cash Fund, revenues for each fund are provided by a 
specific line item in the District’s annual property tax levy and are legally restricted to 
the stated purpose of this fund.   
Each fund6 is documented via line item on the District’s annual property tax levy with 
the exception of the Working Cash Fund (the LLD does not appropriate for Working 
Cash funds).  
 
The balance for such revenue funds will be targeted at a minimum level of three (3) 
months of budgeted expenditures for the specified purpose. 
The balance of such funds should represent no less than three months of budgeted 
expenditures for the specified purpose. 

 
 

6. E. Special Reserve Fund 
The Special Reserve Fund is a restricted fund utilized established to account for and 
report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for 
capital outlays including the maintenance, acquisition, construction, or improvement of 

                                                 
6 The LLD appropriates for the Special Reserve Fund, but does not levy for Special Reserve funds. 

Correct/verified 

& atty recs ORD 

80 



 

 

capital facilities.  This fund is also to provide for emergency capital expenditures.  The 
LLD does not levy for Special Reserve funds.  
The Special Reserve Fund balance is reviewed in developing the Special Reserve Fund 
Ordinance, and shall be maintained at a level appropriate for the last Special Reserve 
Fund Ordinance adopted by the LLD Board.   
A Special Reserve Fund Ordinance is statutorily required to accumulate and set apart 
reserve funds.  
All funds monies in the Special Reserve Fund are dedicated to the furtherance of 
projects identified within the Special Reserve Fund Ordinance categories.  The Special 
Reserve Fund Ordinance must include provision for emergency capital expenditures. 
This ordinance may be amended as circumstances may require.   
 

7. F. Monitoring Targets 
The Library’s Director, and Finance Director, in conjunction with the and Treasurer of 
the Lisle Library District LLD Board of Trustees, will shall monitor revenue collection, 
expenditures, and availability of cash.  This will be is done accomplished through the  
via reviewing of monthly financial reports and the annual review of a cash flow forecast.   
 
The Director will advise shall apprise the Board of Trustees whenever revenue 
projections suggest that revenue will fall short of expectations, or when unexpected 
expenditures exceed budget, or if for any other reason fund target(s) may not be met by 
the end of the fiscal year.  when revenues or expenditures show significant variances 
from LLD financial expectations/goals.   
In such an event, the Board of Trustees may instruct the Director to take any or all of the 
following actions: review expenditures with the Department Directors; reduce capital 
expenditures; reduce operating expenditures where prudent, while maintaining 
priorities established by the Lisle Library District Board; and present to the Lisle Library 
District Board a full account of expense reduction and control options, including those 
that might modify goals and priorities previously established by the Board. 
 
 

Adopted 10/08/14 
Revised 12/14/16 
Revised 11/14/18 

 
 

81 



 

 

POLICY 720 
LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT INVESTMENTS 

 
1.  Purpose and Scope 

It is the policy of the Lisle Library District to be soundly financed at all times, to insure 

adequately against all risks anticipated to the extent possible, to protect the Library’s 

investment through adequate controls, and to assure the security and preservation of 

public funds. 

It is the policy of the Lisle Library District (LLD) to invest public funds in reasonably 

risk-averse assets which provide the highest return possible while meeting the cash 

flow demands of the Library.  The LLD complies with all statutes governing the 

investment of public funds. 

Maintaining the public’s trust is the most important consideration in investment 
decisions when investing public funds.  In managing its investment portfolio, the Lisle 
Library District The LLD shall strive to avoid any transaction that might impair damage 
public confidence in the Library’s stewardship of funds.  Investments shall be made with 
discretion and care, considering the probable safety of the capital as well as the 
probable income to be derived. 
This policy includes all funds governed by the LLD Board of Trustees. 
This policy shall be reviewed annually. 

 
2. Standards of Care 

a. Prudence 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent 
person” standard as established by 29 USC/1104 (United States Code, Title 29).  
 
A fiduciary shall discharge his/her duties with respect to a plan solely in the 
interest of the participants and beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose of:  
 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then 
prevailing that persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the 
management of their own affairs, not for specification, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be 
derived, net of expenses.    29 USC / 1104 

 
i. providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable 

expenses of administering the plan;  
ii. with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing 

that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use 
in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims; 

 

82 



 

 

iii. by diversifying the investments of the plan so as to minimize the risk of large losses, 
unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not to do so; 

iv. in accordance with the documents and instruments governing the plan; 

 
b. Ethics and Conflict of Interest  

Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial 
institutions with which they conduct business.   Officers and employees involved in 
the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could 
conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program or 
that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from 
personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and 
management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make 
objective decisions.  Employee and investment officials shall disclose any material 
interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business.  

 
c. Delegation of Authority   

The responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Treasurer 
of the LLD Board of Library Trustees.  The management and administrative duties 
are delegated to the Library Director and Finance Director. The LLD Treasurer shall 
be apprised of transactions in accordance with LLD Investment Strategy parameters.  
 
Officers and administrative staff responsible for investments and financial 
management of the Lisle Library District LLD shall be adequately appropriately 
insured and bonded.   

 
3. Objectives 

The primary objectives, in order of priority, shall be: 
 

1. Legality - Conformance compliance with federal, state, and other legal 
requirements 

2. Safety -  preservation of capital and protection of investment principal 
3. Yield - each investment shall seek the best possible rate of return.  
4. Liquidity -  the Lisle Library District’s investment portfolio shall remain 

sufficiently liquid to enable the Library to meet all operating requirements that 
may be reasonably anticipated in any fund:   
                                                                            

 To utilize, wherever possible, local financial institutions, not to preclude any 

previously listed investment objectives. 

 No less than one month’s operating expenses are kept locally in a liquid 

account.  

83 



 

 

 The portfolio should be reviewed periodically quarterly as to its effectiveness 

in meeting the Library’s need for safety, liquidity, rate of return, 

diversification, and its general performance. 

4. Safekeeping and Custody 

a. Public Trust 

In order to adhere to our respect of the public trust, Lisle Library District LLD shall 
conduct transactions in a manner that shall ensure that public trust shall be of 
primary importance in all financial matters.    
 
All security transactions including collateral for repurchase agreements entered into 
by Lisle Library District LLD shall be conducted in a manner that ensures safety.  The 
Lisle Library District LLD is required to keep receipts and a written record of all 
transactions.     
 

b. Authorized Investment Types 

Investments may be made in any type of security allowed for by Illinois statutes 
regarding the investment of public funds.  Section 30, Act 235 of the Illinois 
Compiled Statutes (ICLS), Public Funds Investment Act authorizes investment of 
public funds in the following investment vehicles.  This is only an excerpt.  Please 
read the actual statute for further details. including but not limited to: 
 

i.     Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills that are guaranteed 

by the full faith and credit of the U.S.A. as to principal and interest or its 

agencies, which include, but are not limited to the federal land banks, federal 

intermediate credit banks, banks for cooperative federal farm credit banks, 

or any other entity authorized to issue debt obligations under the Farm 

Credit Act of 1971; federal home loan banks and the federal home loan 

mortgage corporations; and any other agency created by Act of Congress. 

ii.    Interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit, time deposits 

iii.     Short term obligations of corporations organized in the U.S. with assets 

exceeding $500,000,000 subject to several detailed terms listed in the 

statute. 

iv.     Money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act 

of 1940 provided that the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is 

limited to obligations described in paragraph 1 i of this section and to 

agreements to repurchase such obligation. 

v.    Interest bearing bonds of any county, township, city, village, incorporated 

town, municipal corporation or school district.  This investment has 

restrictions that should be reviewed in the actual statute.  

84 



 

 

vi.     Investments in banks that are insured by FDIC, short term discount 

obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association; Savings Banks and 

Savings and Loan Associations insured by FDIC; credit unions chartered under 

the laws of the State with the principal office of such credit union located 

within the State of Illinois. 

vii.  The Illinois Funds and IMET. 

viii.     Repurchase agreements of government securities that are subject to the 

Government Securities Act of 1986 purchased through banks or trust 

companies authorized to do business in the State of Illinois. 

 

c. Collateralization 

 

Funds on deposit in excess of insured limits (i.e., FDIC) have collateral pledged 

at not less than 100% of the uninsured value.  Pledged collateral will be held in 

safekeeping by a third party.  Acceptable securities for collateral in order of 

preference are:  

i. Obligations of the United States Government, Treasury Bills, and 

Certificates of Indebtedness, Notes and Bonds; 

ii. Obligations of United States Government Agencies 

d. Internal Controls 

The Lisle Library District LLD is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 

internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Lisle Library 

District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse.  The internal control 

structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these 

objectives are met.   The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the 

1) cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 2) the 

valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgment by 

management.    

  

Accordingly, the investment officer Treasurer shall establish a process for an 

annual independent review by an external auditor to assure compliance with 

policies and procedures.   The internal controls shall address the following 

points:  

i. Control of collusion 

ii. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and recordkeeping 

iii. Custodial safekeeping 

iv. Avoidance of physical delivery securities 

v. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members 

vi. Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers 

85 



 

 

vii. Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third 

party custodian. 

 

e. Financial and Investment Services Providers  

Investment advisors, money managers, and similar service providers shall be 
engaged on an as-needed basic basis only and by action of the Board. A 
competitive process will shall be used to select any such service provider. This 
process will shall be designed and coordinated by the LLD Treasurer, 
Administration and the Board’s LLD Finance Committee.   
 

f. Statutory Responsibility  

The Treasurer and all appropriate administrative personnel shall carry 

statutory responsibility and be appropriately bonded. 

5.  Investment Parameters 

 

a. Strategy 

  

The Lisle Library District LLD shall adopt and follow the Investment Strategy 

formulated for the Library by its investment consulting firm. 

  

b. Diversification 

 

The Lisle Library District LLD shall diversify its investments to the best of its 

ability based on the nature of the funds invested and the cash flow needs of 

the funds using the following guidelines: 

  

i. Limiting investments to avoid overconcentration in securities from a 

specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities) 

ii. Limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks 

iii. Investing in securities with varying maturities 

iv. Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available 

funds such as local government investment pools (i.e. Illinois Funds) 

and money market funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is 

maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations 

 

 

 

 

86 



 

 

c. Maximum Maturities  

 

i. To the extent possible, the Lisle Library District LLD shall attempt to match 

its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Therefore, the 

Treasurer shall establish a maximum maturity limit for securities unless 

they are matched to a specific cash flow or if the investments maturities 

are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the 

funds. 

ii. The Lisle Library District shall, when deemed appropriate, adopt weighted 

average maturity limitations consistent with the investment objectives 

which may range from 90 days to 5 years.   The average weighted maturity 

shall not exceed 3 years. 

iii. Reserve funds and other funds with longer-term investment horizons may 

be invested in securities exceeding five years if the maturities of such 

investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the 

expected use of funds.   The intent to invest in securities with longer 

maturities shall be disclosed in writing to the Finance Committee. 

iv. Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow 

requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in 

readily available funds such as Illinois Funds, money market funds, or 

overnight repurchase agreement to ensure that appropriate liquidity is 

maintained to meet ongoing obligations. 

 

6. Reporting 

 

A. Methodology 

An investment report shall be prepared at least monthly.   The report should 
be provided to the LLD Board of Library Trustees and be available upon 
request.   The report should be in a format suitable for review by the general 
public.   An annual report should also be provided to the Board.   The report 
shall include information regarding securities in the portfolio by class or type, 
book value, income earned, and market value as of the report date.  

 
B. Performance Standards 

This investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters 
specified within this policy. 

 
          Adopted 11/10/99 

         Revised 11/13/02 
         Revised 10/9/13 

87 



 

 

         Revised 03/11/15 

                                                                                                                                                                      Revised 02/08/17 
                Revised 11/14/18 

88 



 

1 
 

APPROVED 
LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

June 27, 2018 - 12:00 p.m. 

   
1. Roll call   

Present: 

Longry Wang - Treasurer | Chair 

Jay Fisher - President 

Liz Sullivan - Trustee 

 

Also Present: 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director 

Ginger Boskelly - Finance Director 

Dawn Lawson - Ehlers Investment Partners 

Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 

Marjorie Bartelli - Secretary 

Richard Flint - Trustee 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the December 13, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

MOTION: President Fisher moved to approve minutes of the December 13, 2017 Finance Committee 

meeting. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. Financial forecast as presented by Ehlers Investment representative 

Treasurer Wang introduced Dawn Lawson, from Ehlers Investment Partners to the Committee. 

 

Ms. Lawson provided a review of the LLD investment portfolio and investment policy. 
 

 Discussion: Committee members discussed the cash flow forecast and investments. Financial   

Manager Boskelly explained each account and their use. Treasurer Wang talked about the 

balance for the MB Financial Now account and an e-commerce account. 

 

 

5. Budget and Appropriation (B&A) Overview 

Director Weinstein mentioned sending Committee members chapter five of the Financial Manual for 

Illinois Public Libraries which provides an overview of the B&A process and how it is prepared. 

Director Weinstein then provided a summary and timeline of the process for the LLD B&A. 

 

 Discussion: Trustee Sullivan commented that she would like to see the working budget and B&A 

 closer together in time. Director Weinstein discussed the process, scheduling, and statutes.  

 

 

 

 

89 



 

2 
 

6. Financial reporting formatting - discussion 

Treasurer Wang asked the Committee what improvements they would like to see made to the 

financial reporting for the monthly Board packet. 

 

Discussion: President Fisher suggested a percentage regarding fiscal year period be added to the 

report. Financial Manager Boskelly suggested to put it near the title on each page. The 

Committee agreed. Treasurer Wang asked about spreadsheet format access for financials. 

 

7. Adjourn 

MOTION: Trustee Sullivan moved to adjourn the meeting. President Fisher seconded.  

Voice Vote - All Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 12:50 p.m. 

 

Recorded by 

 

_____________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the Finance Committee on October 22, 2018. 

Approved by 

 

_____________________________ 

Longry Wang, Committee Chair 

90 



 

1 
 

APPROVED 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT  

LLD STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

September 18, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

Present: 

Jay Fisher - President | Chair 

Thomas Hummel - Vice President 

Longry Wang - Treasurer 

Marjorie Bartelli - Secretary 

Richard Flint - Trustee 

Liz Sullivan - Trustee 

Emily Swistak - Trustee 

Elizabeth Hopkins - Director of Adult Services 

Will Savage - Director of Youth Services 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director/Ex-officio 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director/Ex-officio 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the August 15, 2018 LLD Strategic Planning Committee Meeting 

MOTION: Vice President Hummel moved to approve minutes of the August 15, 2018 LLD Strategic Planning 

Committee Meeting. Will Savage seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - Trustee Flint - Aye, Trustee Hummel - Aye, Trustee Sullivan - Abstain, Trustee Swistak - Aye, 

Trustee Wang - Aye, Elizabeth Hopkins - Aye, Will Savage - Aye, Trustee Bartelli - Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. Review: Draft Facility objectives and approach 

 

Director Weinstein provided a review of the revised Facility draft. Committee members suggested 

additional word and format changes throughout. The new vending machine was also discussed in regards 

to Appendix A, item 14: Offer patrons a food/drink option. President Fisher asked the Committee to revisit 

the food/drink topic after a one month trial.  

 

5. Review: Draft Technology and Innovation objectives and approach 

 

Director Weinstein provided a review of the revised Technology and Innovation draft. Committee members 

suggested additional word and format changes throughout. RFID and the Library app were discussed. 

 

6. Discussion: Draft Organizational Culture objectives and approach 

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the Organizational Culture draft. Committee members 

suggested word and format changes throughout. Grant writing/funding, policy review, and 

professional/ethical training were discussed. 

 

 

 

91 



 

2 
 

7. Discussion: Draft Advocacy, Outreach, and Awareness objectives and approach 

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the Advocacy, Outreach, and Awareness draft. Committee 

members suggested word and format changes throughout. Staff/trustee training and fundraising were 

discussed. 

 

Director Weinstein stated that the next step would involve developing an executive summary. Trustee Flint 

added that strategic plans generally include an introduction from the President. The next meeting is 

scheduled for Friday, October 19th at 6:00 pm. 

 

8. Adjourn 

MOTION: Trustee Flint moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 

 

Recorded by 

 

____________________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the LLD Strategic Planning Committee on October 19, 2018. 

Approved by 

 

____________________________________ 

Jay Fisher, President/Committee Chair 

92 



 

1 
 

APPROVED 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT  

LLD STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

October 19, 2018 - 6:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

Present: 

Jay Fisher - President | Chair 

Thomas Hummel - Vice President 

Longry Wang - Treasurer 

Marjorie Bartelli - Secretary 

Richard Flint - Trustee 

Liz Sullivan - Trustee 

Emily Swistak - Trustee 

Elizabeth Hopkins - Director of Adult Services 

Will Savage - Director of Youth Services 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director/Ex-officio 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director/Ex-officio 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak 

 

One member of the public addressed the Committee. She stated that she believes there is a need for public 

transportation for senior citizens who want to visit the Library.  She asked that the Committee look into 

PACE bus service routing. She also commented that the public PC area has an awkward seating 

arrangement for patrons who may choose to review financial business at the PCs.    

 

3. Approve Minutes of the September 18, 2018 LLD Strategic Planning Committee Meeting 

MOTION: Vice President Hummel moved to approve minutes of the September 18, 2018 LLD Strategic 

Planning Committee Meeting. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. Review: Draft Facility objectives and approach 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the changes made to the Facility draft. 

 

5. Review: Draft Technology and Innovation objectives and approach 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the changes made to the Technology and Innovation draft. 

 

6. Review: Draft Organizational Culture objectives and approach 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the changes made to the Organizational Culture draft. 

 

7. Review: Draft Advocacy, Outreach, and Awareness objectives and approach 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the changes made to the Advocacy, Outreach, and Awareness 

draft. 

 

 

 

 

93 



 

2 
 

8. Review: Draft Executive Summary 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the Executive Summary draft. Committee members offered 

feedback and some modifications to the draft. Discussion included the order in which the focus areas 

should appear, what the lifespan of the Plan should be, and what type of photographs to include. The 

Committee agreed that the focus areas should be alphabetized, the Plan should extend 3 years, and the 

photos should complement the focus area concepts. 

 

Director Weinstein posed a question to the Committee regarding the Village’s Downtown Master  

Plan.  The Director mentioned that both the LLD and the Village were in the process of visioning their 

futures via strategic planning.  She stated that the Library should plan long-range and explore all viable 

capital project options.  

 

Director Weinstein asked the Committee that if a mixed-use development opportunity materialized, would 

they be open to the idea of the Library being stationed in the downtown area as part of a mixed-use 

project.  She stipulated that this would have to be financially feasible, provide organizational efficiencies, as 

well as other advantages.  Committee members provided positive feedback and agreed that exploring 

potential opportunities in the downtown area was appropriate.   

 

Director Weinstein stated that she would incorporate Committee feedback into the final draft of the 

Strategic Plan.  She announced that the next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 1st, at 7 pm. 

 

9. Adjourn 

MOTION: Trustee Swistak moved to adjourn the meeting. Will Savage seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 

 

Recorded by 

 

____________________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the LLD Strategic Planning Committee on November 1, 2018. 

Approved by 

 

____________________________________ 

Jay Fisher, President/Committee Chair 

94 


